

Request for Proposal

for

Detailed Design

of

Giants Head Road Upgrades

Reference Number:

5330-144

Issue Date:

April 27, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Instructions	s to Proponents	4
IP-1 Intro	oduction	4
IP-1.1	Definitions	
IP-1.2	Project Description	4
IP-2 Ger	neral Terms	4
IP-2.1	Licences and Permits	4
IP-2.2	Inquiries	4
IP-2.3	Communications	5
IP-2.4	RFP Documents	5
IP-2.5	Clarification	5
IP-2.6	Cost of Preparation	6
IP-2.7	Proponent's Briefing	6
IP-2.8	Milestone Dates	6
IP-2.9	Addenda	6
IP-2.10	Acceptance Period	6
IP-2.11	Evaluation Process	6
IP-2.12	Award	6
IP-2.13	Consulting Services Contract	7
IP-2.14	Consulting Fees	7
IP-2.15	Confidentiality	7
IP-3 Sco	ope of Services	7
IP-4 Sub	omission of Proposals	7
IP-4.1	Closing Date and Time	
IP-4.2	Amendment to Proposals	7
IP-4.3	Content of Proposals	8
Consulting	Services Contract	10
CC-1 Pro	oject Title	10
CC-2 Cor	ntract Documents	10
CC-3 Scc	ope of Services and Milestone Dates	10
CC-4 Cha	ange of Scope	11
CC-5 Res	sponsibilities	11
CC-6 Suk	b-consultants	12
CC-7 Sch	hedule	12
CC-8 Del	lays	12
CC-9 Cor	ntract Fee and Payment	13

CC-10 Successors and Assigns	14
CC-11 Applicable laws	14
CC-12 Insurance	14
CC-13 Waiver	15
CC-14 Confidentiality, Ownership and Use of Documents and Materials	15
CC-15 Arbitration	16
CC-16 Records and Audit	16
CC-17 Indemnification	16
CC-18 Entire Contract	16
CC-19 Default	16
CC-20 Notices and Communications	17
Schedule 'A' - Contract Documents	19
Schedule 'B' - Scope of Service	20
SS-1.0 Project Description	20
SS-2.0 General	20
SS-3.0 Data Collection	20
SS-4.0 Detailed Design	21
SS-5.0 Draft Design Submission	21
SS-6.0 Final Design Submission	22
SS-7.0 Tender Process	22
SS-8.0 Project Management / Contract Administration	23
SS-9.0 Construction Inspection	23
SS-10.0 Record Drawings	23
Schedule 'C' - Milestone Dates	24
Schedule 'D' - Contract Fee	25
Schedule 'E' - Change of Scope Form	26
Schedule 'F' – REP Evaluation Matrix	27

Instructions to Proponents

Project Title: District of Summerland

Detailed Design of Giants Head Road Upgrades

Reference No.: 5330-144

IP-1 Introduction

IP-1.1 Definitions

"Briefing Date and Time" means Thursday, May 4, 2017 at 10:30 a.m. (PST).

"Closing Date and Time" means Thursday, May 18, 2017 at 2:00 p.m. (PST).

"Consultant" means a person, firm, or corporation having a direct contract with the

District to provide the services outlined in the RFP.

"Director" means the Director of Works and Utilities.

"District" means the District of Summerland.

"RFP" means this Request for Proposal.

"Project" means the Giants Head Road Upgrades.

"Project Manager" means the Manager of Works.

"Project Office" means the Works and Utilities Department

Box 159, 9215 Cedar Avenue Summerland, BC V0H 1Z0

"Proposal Review Committee" means the team of qualified staff appointed by the Director to review and assess Proposals.

IP-1.2 Project Description

Refer to SS-1.0 'Project Description'

IP-2 General Terms

IP-2.1 Licences and Permits

The successful Proponent must either obtain or possess a current District Business Licence and is responsible for obtaining or possessing any other permits that may be required to complete this consulting assignment in accordance with the Consulting Services Contract.

IP-2.2 Inquiries

All inquiries regarding the RFP shall be directed to the Project Office:

Attention: Maarten Stam

Manager of Works

Phone: (250) 494-0431 Fax: (250) 494-3399

E-mail: <u>mstam@summerland.ca</u>

IP-2.3 Communications

Proponents are advised that the Project Manager and the Director are the only District representatives with whom they are permitted to communicate and discuss issues regarding the RFP. Any contact, other than minor incidental contact, with any other District representatives, including members of the District Council and District officers or employees, regarding the RFP or the Proponent's Proposal, will result in the Proponent's Proposal being removed from consideration for this competition.

The Director will issue a written Notice of Removal to any Proponent whose Proposal is being removed from consideration for this competition.

A Proponent who wishes to dispute the Notice of Removal must submit a formal written appeal to the Director within 5 days of the issuance of the Notice of Removal. The appeal must clearly state the reasons the Proponent feels their submission should be reinstated. Under this process, if the Proponent is not satisfied with the Director's decision, the appeal will be forwarded to the Chief Administrative Officer who, at their sole discretion, will make the final decision.

IP-2.4 RFP Documents

The documents which form part of the RFP are the Contract Documents as outlined in Schedule 'A'.

IP-2.5 Clarification

The RFP is a request for proposals and is not a tender or an offer to contract.

The District reserves the right to:

- consider and analyze Proposal submissions;
- reject any Proposal it considers not in its best interest;
- to meet with the Proponents, either individually or collectively, to discuss the RFP and their submissions;
- after identifying the preferred Proponent, to negotiate any changes, amendments or modifications with the preferred Proponent, without offering the other Proponents the right to amend their Proposals;
- to cancel the RFP at any time without incurring liability to any Proponent;
- to reject any or all Proposals;
- to accept any Proposal whether complete or not;
- not to accept the Proposal with the lowest fee;
- to alter any aspects of the RFP in its sole discretion.

It is the nature of the RFP process that the RFP and/or the Proposal in response to the RFP will not constitute a binding Contract, but will only form the basis for the Consulting Services Contract, and does not mean that the Proposal is necessarily acceptable in the form submitted.

IP-2.6 Cost of Preparation

No Proponent shall have any claim for any compensation of any kind whatsoever, as a result of participating in the RFP, and by submitting a proposal each Proponent shall be deemed to have agreed that it has no claim.

IP-2.7 Proponent's Briefing

A Proponent's briefing is scheduled to take place at the Project Office at the Briefing Date and Time. All Proponents are invited to attend. Representatives of the District will be in attendance.

IP-2.8 Milestone Dates

The Proponent will be required to meet the milestone dates outlined in Schedule 'C'.

IP-2.9 Addenda

Questions regarding the RFP should be submitted in writing to the Project Manager. Written questions will be summarized, answered, and an addendum will be posted on BC Bid and the District's website.

The District will not be responsible for nor be bound by any verbal instructions, interpretations, or explanations issued by its members, agents, employees, or representatives.

Addenda may be issued up to 48 hours prior to the Closing Date and Closing Time. After this time, the RFP will be considered complete and no further Addenda will be issued.

IP-2.10 Acceptance Period

Proposals shall be open for acceptance by the District for a period of sixty days after the Closing Date and Time.

IP-2.11 Evaluation Process

Evaluations of proposals will be conducted by the Proposal Review Committee. The District may retain an independent consultant to assist the Proposal Review Committee in evaluating Proposals. The Proposal Review Committee will review proposals against the Proposal Evaluation Matrix as contained in Schedule 'F'.

Proponents will be short-listed and may be invited to provide a presentation of their proposal to the Proposal Review Committee. References of short-listed Proponents will be contacted to confirm knowledge, experience, and suitability of qualifications. Upon completion of the evaluation process, the Proposal Review Committee will submit a recommendation of award to the District Council.

IP-2.12 Award

The successful Proponent will be given Notice by the Director.

IP-2.13 Consulting Services Contract

The successful Proponent will be required to enter into the District's Consulting Services Contract as attached.

IP-2.14 Consulting Fees

The Contract Fee for this consulting assignment shall be based on the hourly rates, upset fees, and lump sum fees proposed by the successful Proponent. Proponents must indicate how disbursements will be calculated and must provide an estimated cost of the disbursements they anticipate will be necessary to complete the consulting assignment.

IP-2.15 Confidentiality

All documentation and information obtained by Proponents from the District in connection with the RFP are the property of the District and must be treated as confidential and shall not be used for any purpose other than responding to the RFP or fulfilling any subsequent contract.

The Proposal and any accompanying documentation submitted by the Proponents to the District shall become the property of the District and shall not be returned. The Proposal and any accompanying documentation shall be subject to the provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. Confidentiality of such information will be maintained by the District, except where the District is required by law to provide the information.

IP-3 Scope of Services

The Scope of Services for this consulting assignment is outlined in Schedule 'B'.

Proponents are required to include a separate section in their Proposal that outlines any services they will be providing that are not included in the Scope of Services but which the Proponent deems necessary to successfully complete this consulting assignment.

IP-4 Submission of Proposals

IP-4.1 Closing Date and Time

Proposals are to be labelled with the Project Title and Reference Number and be submitted to the Project Office on or before the Closing Date and Time.

IP-4.2 Amendment to Proposals

A Proponent may amend or revoke a Proposal by giving written Notice to the Director, delivered by hand, mail, fax, or e-mail to the Project Office. An amendment that is received after the Closing Date and Closing Time will not be considered and shall not affect a Proposal, as submitted.

An amendment or revocation must be signed by an authorised signatory of the Proponent.

The District reserves the right to disqualify a Proponent if, in the opinion of the Director, an amendment expressly, or by inference, discloses the Proponent's fees or other material element of the Proposal such that the confidentiality of the Proposal may have been breached.

If a Proposal amendment or revocation is sent by fax or email, the Proponent assumes the entire risk that the District will properly receive the fax or email before the Closing Date and Time. The District shall not be liable to any Proponent for any reason a fax or email is not properly received.

IP-4.3 Content of Proposals

If you are interested in this consulting assignment, you are requested to submit three (3) copies of your proposal with the following supporting information:

- a. the Proponent's contact information, including contact name, mailing address, phone number, cell phone number, fax number, and e-mail address;
- a list of all key personnel and sub-consultants who will form the Consultant's project team and will be responsible for the successful completion of this consulting assignment;
- c. the manager who the Proponent has appointed to lead the Consultant's project team and who will be the sole source of contact for the District;
- d. the professional designation, responsibilities, qualifications, and relevant experience of each of the Consultant's project team members;
- e. a detailed work plan outlining all relevant tasks and the personnel, estimated hours, hourly rates and total estimated costs for each task as well as:
 - i. detailed breakdown of anticipated disbursements including, but not limited to, vehicle costs, mileage, travel, meals, lodging, and administrative support;
 - ii. lump sum fee for administering the tendering process; (optional)
 - iii. hourly and weekly rates for contract administration based on 10 hours per week; (optional)
 - iv. hourly and weekly rates for construction inspection based on 10 hours per day and 50 hours per week; (optional)
 - v. lump sum fee to produce record drawings. (optional)
- f. a detailed outline clearly describing the methodology anticipated to complete this consulting assignment;
- g. a list of all relevant tasks, meetings, milestones, and deliverables required to complete this consulting assignment;
- h. a list of and fee for any services included in the Consultant's proposal that are not required in the Scope of Services;
- a detailed schedule showing the District's projected monthly cash flow, based on the Contract Fee;

- j. GST shall not be included in the Contract Fee. GST will be added to the Contract Fee at the time of payment by the District. All other applicable taxes are to be included in the Contract Fee;
- k. the following endorsements:
 - i. "We, (name of Consultant), do hereby confirm that all computer software used by the Consultant in the execution of this assignment is directly licensed to the Consultant and that the terms of the software licensing Contracts have not been breached."; and
 - ii. "We, (name of Consultant), do hereby confirm that the key personnel identified as members of the Project Team shall not be replaced without the written approval of the Director";
- I. an execution section to validate the Proponent's commitment to the District, which must be signed and dated by the Proponent's authorized signatories;
- m. confirmation of the number of addenda received by the Proponent; and
- n. three references with the name and number of the individual contact person.



Consulting Services Contract

THIS CONTRACT made in triplicate and entered into effective as of the Enter Date.

BETWEEN:

THE CORPORATION OF THE DISTRICT OF SUMMERLAND,

a municipal corporation having its offices at: 13211 Henry Avenue, Summerland, British Columbia, V0H 1Z0

(hereinafter referred to as the "District")

OF THE FIRST PART

AND:

Enter Consultant's Name

(hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant")

OF THE SECOND PART.

NOW THIS CONTRACT WITNESSES THAT IN consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually covenant and agree as follows:

CC-1 Project Title

CC-1.1 The consulting assignment to which this Contract pertains is titled "Giants Head Road Upgrades" and hereinafter shall be referred to as the "**Project**".

CC-2 Contract Documents

- CC-2.1 The Contract Documents shall be as outlined in Schedule 'A'.
- CC-2.2 Where there is a conflict between the wording or interpretation of the Contract Documents, the wording or interpretation of the Contract Document with the highest precedence shall apply.

CC-3 Scope of Services and Milestone Dates

- CC-3.1 The Scope of Services shall be as outlined in Schedule 'B'.
- CC-3.2 The Milestone Dates that the Consultant must attain for completion of the various tasks are as outlined in Schedule 'C'.

- CC-3.3 Where the District requests the Consultant to provide services that the Consultant considers additional to the Scope of Services, or as previously approved by a Change of Scope, the Consultant must notify the District that a Change of Scope will be required. The Consultant shall not render any services, for which it intends invoicing the District, which are not included within the scope of this Contract unless:
 - the Consultant submits a Change of Scope form to the District pursuant to this Contract: and
 - the District approves the Change of Scope as submitted.

The District shall not be required to pay for any services additional to those services required in this Contract unless the District approves a Change of Scope prior to the Consultant providing the service.

CC-4 Change of Scope

- CC-4.1 The District and the Consultant may, through a Change of Scope Form, alter, add to, or deduct from the Scope of Services required in this Contract.
- CC-4.2 A Change of Scope shall be made in the format outlined in Schedule 'E' of this Contract.
- CC-4.3 All Change of Scope forms shall outline the following:
 - a detailed itemization of the services which will be or are requested to be provided;
 and
 - any adjustment to the consulting assignment schedule; and
 - any adjustment to the Consultant's Upset fee that currently has been approved by the District.
- CC-4.4 A Change of Scope does not invalidate this Contract and is not valid until such time as both parties have agreed to and signed the Change of Scope form.

CC-5 Responsibilities

Consultant

- CC-5.1 The Consultant shall supply all professional expertise and services necessary for the proper performance of the Scope of Services. The Consultant shall, at all times, act in the best interests of the District and exercise the degree of professional care, skill, and diligence required by the body that governs and regulates the applicable professional designations.
- CC-5.2 The Consultant shall be responsible for determining the accuracy and completeness of all information and data furnished by or through the District.
- CC-5.3 The Consultant is responsible for the complete co-ordination of all professional services rendered to the District by the Consultant or by the Consultant's sub-consultants.
- CA-5.4 The Consultant shall not authorize any Changes or Extra Work until such time as the Director has reviewed and approved the Change Order or the Extra Work Order.
- CA-5.5 The Consultant shall administer the construction contract in accordance with the Master Municipal Construction Documents (MMCD), Volume 1 and 2, edition 2009 (Platinum Book). Where the provisions of the MMCD and this Agreement conflict, this Agreement shall take precedent.

CA-5.6 The Consultant's site inspector shall keep an accurate log documenting daily activities pertaining to the Project including dates and duration of all site inspections.

District

- CC-5.8 The District will make available to the Consultant any relevant data pertinent to the Project which is requested by the Consultant and which is contained in the District's files. The suitability, accuracy, and completeness of this data are at the sole discretion of the Consultant.
- CC-5.9 The District shall provide all advertising related to the Project.
- CC-5.10 The District shall not reimburse the Consultant for any legal, accounting, insurance, bonding, and other consulting advice the Consultant may require in order to provide the services outlined in this Contract, unless such expense has been approved in writing in advance by the Director.
- CC-5.11 The District shall consider all sketches, drawings, specifications, tenders, proposals, contracts, and other documents submitted by the Consultant and shall inform the Consultant of its decisions in such reasonable time so that the Consultant's services are not delayed.
- CC-5.12 The District shall pay the Consultant pursuant to the Contract.
- CC-5.13 The District shall promptly notify the Consultant of any defects or deficiencies it discovers in the works or the contract documents.

CC-6 Sub-consultants

- CC-6.1 The Consultant agrees that:
 - any contracting with sub-consultants shall be approved in advance by the District;
 - all contracts with sub-consultants shall be between the Consultant and the subconsultants; and
 - all costs associated with any sub-consultants required to supply the services pursuant to this Contract are included in the approved Contract Fee.

CC-7 Schedule

- CC-7.1 The Consultant shall use its best efforts to perform the Scope of Services in accordance with the detailed baseline schedule, as outlined in the Consultant's Proposal.
- CC-7.2 Any schedule or specified timing may be adjusted during the course of the consulting assignment, without invalidating this Contract, upon mutual agreement between the District and the Consultant.

CC-8 Delays

- CC-8.1 If the Consultant is delayed in the progress of this consulting assignment by:
 - any act or omission of the District, anyone employed by the District, or anyone contracted to the District;
 - a stop work order issued by a court or other public authority providing that such order was not issued as the result of an act or fault of the Consultant or anyone employed or engaged by him directly or indirectly;

- labour disputes, strikes, lock-outs, fire, unusual delay in transportation, adverse
 weather conditions not reasonably foreseeable, unavoidable casualties or,
 without limit to the foregoing, any cause beyond the Consultant's control;
- the Consultant may request that the schedule be extended and the Contract Fee be adjusted in accordance with the Change of Scope process.
- CC-8.2 The Consultant will not be entitled to an extension to the schedule or an adjustment to the Contract Fee if the Notice of Claim is submitted to the District more than ten (10) days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to the delay.

CC-9 Contract Fee and Payment

- CC-9.1 The Contract Fee for this consulting assignment shall be in accordance with Schedule 'D'.
- CC-9.2 GST is in addition to the Contract Fee.
- CC-9.3 All computer hardware and software costs shall be included in the employee's hourly rate of pay and shall not be billed as a separate disbursement.
- CC-9.4 The District shall not be required to pay any fees or costs to the Consultant for any services, materials, or equipment beyond those identified in the Scope of Services unless a Change of Scope has been submitted to and approved by the District.
- CC-9.5 The Consultant shall submit, by the 15th day of each month, an invoice to the District for payment of the previous month's services. The invoice shall be in a format acceptable to the District and shall include the following information:
 - Total Upset Fee
 - List of all Changes of Scope
 - Adjusted Upset Fee
 - Previous Invoice Total
- Amount This Invoice
- Total Invoiced to Date
- Itemized List of Disbursements
- GST as a separate item

The consultant shall also include with each invoice, an updated detailed electronic spreadsheet outlining all relevant tasks and the personnel, estimated hours, hourly rates, and total cost for each task.

- CC-9.6 Payment shall be prorated based on the services completed and shall include any reimbursable disbursements incurred during the preceding month.
- CC-9.7 The invoice total shall become due and payable approximately 30 days after the submission date.
- CC-9.8 Upon request from the District, the Consultant shall provide, at no cost to the District, documentation to substantiate any invoice. Where only a part of an invoice can be substantiated to the satisfaction of the District, the District shall only be required to pay that part of the invoice. Payment of the remainder of the invoice will be withheld until such time as the Consultant provides the District with the required documentation to substantiate the invoice, or portion of the invoice, in question.
- CC-9.9 Where the District has overpaid an invoice, the amount shall be deducted from the next invoice. If the Consultant has completed his responsibilities pursuant to this Contract, and no further invoices are forthcoming, the District may make written request for

- reimbursement of the overpayment from the Consultant, and the Consultant shall pay the amount to the District within 10 working days from the receipt of the request.
- CC-9.10 The District may request the Consultant to submit, at no cost to the District, with the final invoice, a Statutory Declaration or other proof, that there are no outstanding costs, assessments, liens, or claims against the Consultant or against the District's property arising out of or in connection with the Consultant's services rendered on the Project.

CC-10 Successors and Assigns

- CC-10.1 This Contract and the terms and conditions herein contained shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.
- CC-10.2 Neither party shall assign this Contract or any portion thereof without the prior written consent of the other, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

CC-11 Applicable laws

CC-11.1 This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the Province of British Columbia.

CC-12 Insurance

CC-12.1 As a minimum, the Consultant shall, without limiting its obligations or liabilities under any other contract with the District, procure and maintain, at its own expense and cost, the following insurance policies:

Commercial General Liability Insurance

Providing for an inclusive limit of not less than \$2,000,000 for each occurrence or accident, and \$5,000,000 aggregate; providing for all sums which the Consultant shall become legally obligated to pay for damages because of bodily injury (including death at any time resulting therefrom) sustained by any person or persons or because of damage to or destruction of property caused by an occurrence or accident arising out of or related to the Work or Services or any operations carried on in connection with this Contract; including coverage for Consultant's Protective, Personal Injury, Contingent Employer's Liability, Broad Form Property Damage, and Non-Owned Automobile Liability.

Cross Liability Coverage

Coverage must include a Cross Liability clause providing that the inclusion of more than one Insured shall not in any way affect the rights of any other Insured hereunder, in respect to any claim, demand, suit or judgment made against any other Insured.

Coverage must remain in force for the life of the Project and for a minimum of 12 months after substantial completion.

Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance

Coverage in the amount of \$2,000,000 per occurrence and \$5,000,000 aggregate, and must remain in force for the life of the Project and for 12 months after substantial completion.

<u>Automobile Liability Insurance</u>

Automobile Liability Insurance covering all motor vehicles, owned, operated and used or to be used by the Consultant directly or indirectly in the performance of the Work or Services. The Limit of Liability shall not be less than \$2,000,000 inclusive, for loss or damage including bodily injury, death or third party property damage resulting from any one accident or occurrence. The maximum deductible in all categories shall be \$50,000.

- CC-12.2 The Consultant shall provide proof to the District, and shall, upon request, provide the current policy certificate of insurance for inspection by the District.
- CC-12.3 The Consultant accepts responsibility for the acts and omissions of all sub-consultants it may engage in rendering the services for the Project.
- CC-12.4 The Consultant's professional errors and omissions insurance shall remain in force for the life of the Project and for 12 months after substantial performance. The errors and omissions insurance shall contain the following endorsement to provide the District with prior notice of changes and cancellations:

"The Insurer and the Insured Consultant shall provide written notice to be delivered by hand, or sent by registered mail to the District of Summerland's Director of Corporate Services at least 30 days in advance of the activation date of any proposed cancellation, change or amendment restricting coverage under this policy".

CC-13 Waiver

CC-13 Waiver by the District of any breach of this Contract by the Consultant must not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach by the Consultant. Failure by the District to take any action in respect of any breach of this Agreement by the Consultant must not be deemed to be a waiver of such breach. All waivers must be in writing.

CC-14 Confidentiality, Ownership and Use of Documents and Materials

- CC-14.1 The District is subject to the British Columbia Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. Any reports and or documents produced by or on behalf of the District may be subject to public review as provided for under the Act.
- CC-14.2 The Consultant shall keep confidential for an unlimited period of time all communications, plans, specifications, reports or other technical information used in connection with this consulting assignment except:
 - those requiring disclosure by operation of law; or
 - any disclosure authorized in writing by the District.
- CC-14.3 The Consultant shall, by employing written Contracts, bind all employees, subconsultants, and agents to the obligations required by this Act.
- CC-14.4 The Consultant agrees that the District owns all survey data, spatial data, cartographic data, studies, reports, software, drawings, plans, models, designs, photographs, specifications, tender documents, and other materials prepared or developed by, or on behalf of, the Consultant and which are employed in connection with this consulting

- assignment. The Consultant agrees, without limitation, that they will not use, sell, or distribute this information to others without the express written permission of the District.
- CC-14.5 The Consultant agrees to provide the District with copies of all concepts, methods, products, or processes produced by, or resulting from, the services rendered by the Consultant in connection with this consulting assignment. The Consultant agrees without limitation that the District shall have the full and unrestricted right to use, distribute, and edit this information.

CC-15 Arbitration

- CC-15.1 All matters in dispute under this Contract which cannot be settled by the District and the Consultant may, with the concurrence of both the District and the Consultant, be submitted to final and binding arbitration to a single arbitrator appointed jointly by them.
- CC-15.2 No person shall be nominated to act as arbitrator who is in any way financially interested in this consulting assignment or in the affairs of either the District or the Consultant.
- CC-15.3 In the event that the District and the Consultant cannot agree to an arbitrator, such arbitrator shall be chosen by reference to a Judge of the Supreme Court of British Columbia.

CC-16 Records and Audit

- CC-16.1 The Consultant shall keep reasonable and proper records, accounts, statements, and other financial documents for a period of not less than 6 years after completion of the Project or for such extended period as may be required by law.
- CC-16.2 The Consultant shall permit the District to inspect, audit and copy all records, accounts, statements, and other relevant documents of the Consultant relating to the Project at all reasonable business hours in the offices of the Consultant.

CC-17 Indemnification

CC-17.1 The Consultant shall indemnify and save harmless the District, its Council, officers, agents, and employees from and against all actions, proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by whomever brought or made against the District, or its Council, officers, agents, and employees resulting directly or indirectly from errors, omissions, or negligent acts of the Consultant, the Consultant's agents or the Consultant's sub-consultants during performance of services under this Contract.

CC-18 Entire Contract

CC-18.1 This Contract constitutes the sole and entire Contract between the District and the Consultant relating to this consulting assignment and completely supersedes and abrogates any prior Contracts existing between the District and the Consultant whether written or oral.

CC-19 Default

by Consultant

CC-19.1 Should the Consultant neglect to complete the services properly or to the provisions of this Contract, the District may notify the Consultant in writing that it is in default of its

- contractual obligations and instruct the Consultant to correct the default within 7 working days of receiving the notice.
- CC-19.2 Failure by the Consultant to comply with the default notification extends to the District the option, without limiting any other right or remedy the District may have, of immediately terminating this Contract.
- CC-19.3 Upon termination of the Contract, the District shall pay the Consultant for all services performed and all disbursements incurred pursuant to this Contract and remaining unpaid as of the effective date of such termination minus the costs of damages incurred by the District due to the default of the Contract by the Consultant.
- CC-19.4 Notwithstanding the above, the District may terminate this Contract for any reason by giving 30 day Notice to the Consultant. Upon receipt of such Notice, the Consultant shall perform no further services other than those reasonably necessary to close out this consulting assignment. In such event, the Consultant will be paid by the District pursuant to this Contract, for any services included within the scope of this Contract that have been completed and remain unpaid as of the effective date of such termination.

by District

- CC-19.5 Should the District fail to conform to the provisions of this Contract; the Consultant may notify the District in writing that it is in default of its contractual obligations and instruct it to correct the default within 7 working days of receiving the notice. Failure to comply with the default request extends to the Consultant the option, without limiting any other right or remedy the Consultant may have, of immediately terminating this Contract and requesting settlement for all services performed and all disbursements incurred pursuant to this Contract and remaining unpaid as of the effective date of such termination.
- CC-19.6 Should the Consultant's services be suspended by the District at any time for more than 30 calendar days in any calendar year through no fault of the Consultant, then the Consultant shall have the right until such suspension is lifted by the District, to terminate this Contract upon giving 3 working days written notice thereof to the District. In such event, the Consultant will be paid by the District pursuant to this Contract, for any services included within the scope of this Contract that have been completed and remain unpaid as of the effective date of such termination.

CC-20 Notices and Communications

- CC-20.1 All Notices must be in writing.
- CC-20.2 Notices and written communications between the parties shall be considered to have been received by the addressee as follows:
 - on the date of delivery if delivered by hand;
 - on the next working day if emailed or faxed;
 - after 5 working days if sent by post when addressed as follows:

Box 159, 9215 Cedar Avenue Summerland, BC V0H 1Z0 Fax: (250) 494-3399 the Consultant at **Enter Consultant Information** IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first above written by their officers or persons duly authorized to execute on their behalf. DISTRICT OF SUMMERLAND by its authorized signatories: Name: Name: CONSULTANT by its authorized signatories: Name: Name

District of Summerland Works and Utilities

the District at



Schedule 'A' - Contract Documents

The Contract Documents in order of precedence are:

- The Contract including all Schedules,
- The Instructions to Proponents, and
- The Consultant's proposal dated Enter Date.

Proponents are advised that the following additional documents may be of interest and are available for viewing at the Project Office. These additional documents and any additional information made available to Proponents prior to the Closing Date and Time by the District do not form part of the RFP and are not part of the Contract Documents. These documents are made available to assist the Proponent in preparing their Proposal. The Proponent must make its own judgement about the relevance, reliability, accuracy, or completeness of this information.

It is the Proponent's responsibility to determine if, as part of their evaluation of this consulting assignment and the preparation of their Proposal, they need to request access to any information not attached to but outlined in the RFP.

The additional documents are:

- Design Drawings: Plan & Profile of Lateral 4, Dwg. No. 4827-160 to 4827-163
- Record Drawings: Summerland Water System Plates 44, 46, 48, 55, 59, 60 and 68
- Water Master Plan (Agua Consulting Inc., 2008)
- Water Availability Study (Agua Consulting Inc., 2014)
- Master Drainage Plan (Urban Systems Ltd., 2005)
- Transportation Master Plan (Boulevard Transportation Group, 2007)
- Subdivision and Development Servicing Bylaw 99-004
- Zoning Bylaw 2000-450
- Official Community Plan



Schedule 'B' - Scope of Service

Giants Head Road Upgrades

SS-1.0 Project Description

The Project consists of completing the detailed design for roadway, watermain and drainage improvements for Giants Head Road from Harris Road to Hillborn Street. The total length of the project area is approximately 2.6km. This includes upgrading and separating the existing irrigation from the domestic water system.

SS-2.0 General

- Arrange and attend an initial start-up meeting with the District to discuss this consulting assignment and Scope of Services.
- Arrange and attend regular meetings to discuss interim issues that may arise throughout the duration of this consulting assignment.
- Record and circulate detailed minutes and a list of action items identified in each meeting.

SS-3.0 Data Collection

- Gather and review all relevant information pertaining to the project including, but not limited to, record maps, community plans, applicable bylaws, engineering standards, digital mapping, drawings, Water Master Plan and any relevant geotechnical investigations and reports previously prepared.
- Review all relevant District bylaws including, but not limited to, Subdivision and Development Servicing Bylaw and Water Bylaw;
- Review all project requirements and existing conceptual designs completed in the area with District of Summerland staff prior to commencement of the project.
- Provide all technical field surveys as are required to undertake and complete the final design of the proposed works including but not limited to a legal survey to ensure proposer land acquisition areas are identified. The Consultant shall obtain approvals from property owners as required.
- Confirm utility systems locations and identify potential conflicts and upgrading requirements with District of Summerland, Fortis BC, Telus, Shaw Cable and other utility companies as appropriate. Coordinate other utility company alignment requirements and include one consultative meeting in Summerland with the utility companies and District staff at the outset of the project. The Consultant shall consider the design and relocation of each utility company's infrastructure.
- Determine all intersecting driveway locations, elevations and grades. Redesign and/or relocate as required.

SS-4.0 Detailed Design

The following are the design requirements for all areas within the Project Limits and those areas outside the Project Limits necessary to design smooth transition into existing driveways, side roads, structures, and landscape features.

Design of:

- road reconstruction along Giants Head Road from Harris Road to Hillborn Street to widen the roadway to a standard cross-section including the extension of the pathway which currently ends near Harris Road.
- water infrastructure upgrades, relocations, extensions or installations.
- drainage infrastructure upgrades, relocations, extensions or installations. Note that drainage is generally related to culverts, catchbasins and dry-wells and does not include piped systems.
- review of the District's Master Plans to ensure other works identified are incorporated into the design.
- driveway, side road, structure, landscape and any daylight tie-ins to a location that will provide smooth transition.
- all safety features including but not limited to concrete barriers, existing fences, etc.
- landscaping and boulevard restoration.
- traffic marking and street signage requirements.
- coordination and integration into the design drawings, of all other agencies' upgrade, relocation, extension, or installation requirements.
- the District's Electrical Utility relocation requirements.

SS-5.0 Draft Design Submission

The engineering design must be in accordance with the requirements of the District's Subdivision and Development Servicing Bylaw unless otherwise approved by the Director. Drawing submissions will be made at the 50% and 95% design stage for review by the District before completion of the design.

Design options including cost estimates for each option will be provided to the District for review and direction. The consultant shall make a recommendation on a preferred option and provide rationale for the recommendation.

Provide the following drawings as a minimum requirement:

- Horizontal alignment 1:500, Vertical alignment 1:50 unless otherwise approved.
- Title page and index.

- Composite plans.
- Plan profiles of roads, water, and storm sewer.
- FortisBC gas main location drawings.
- Removal and relocation plans.
- Traffic management plans
- Provide land acquisition requirements and drawings
- Detail Drawings
- Other miscellaneous plans required to properly tender the Project

Once the review has been undertaken and a design has been accepted by the District of Summerland, the consultant will make revisions to the drawings in response to the review process and resubmit 95% Design drawings including a Schedule of Quantities and a detailed cost estimate.

The following items are optional and may be added to the Consultant Contract by the District through a Change of Scope Form.

SS-6.0 Final Design Submission

The consultant will:

- Provide Tender Drawings and Specifications
- Provide a Schedule of Quantities and a detailed cost estimate.
- Provide all information in both hardcopy and an electronic format compatible with the District's software.

SS-7.0 Tender Process

The scope of work that the Consultant will be required to perform during the tender process shall include:

- Review of tender documents to confirm dates and any other specifics and make recommendations for changes if deemed necessary.
- Revise tender documents in accordance with changes approved by the Director.
- Submit one (1) complete set of design drawings to the District.
- Submit one (1) complete tender document package in accordance with the District's standard format.
- Submit a complete copy of all drawings and the tender documents in an electronic format compatible with the District's software.
- Attend a Tenderers' Briefing to discuss the Project, take minutes, and answer any questions brought forward by the Tenderers.
- Prepare and circulate addendum as necessary.
- Review tender submissions and make recommendation for award.

SS-8.0 Project Management / Contract Administration

The scope of services for the detailed design will be paid for at the hourly rates and lump sum fees outlined in the Contract Fee. The scope of services includes:

 Attend regular meetings to discuss project, take minutes, and answer questions brought forward by the Contractor, anticipated to be 10 hours per week.

SS-9.0 Construction Inspection

The scope of services for the Construction Inspection will be paid for at the hourly rates and lump sum fees outlined in the Contract Fee. The scope of services includes:

 Provide one qualified Site Inspector for fulltime construction inspection, anticipated to be 50 hours per week.

SS-10.0 Record Drawings

The provision of record drawings will be paid by lump sum. The scope of services for record drawings shall include:

 Provide one complete set of hard copy record drawings and specifications and one complete set of electronic record drawings and specifications to the Project Office within 30 days of Total Performance.



Schedule 'C' - Milestone Dates

The following are the milestone dates the Consultant must comply with as part of the Contract:

1.	Proposal Submission	May 18, 2017
2.	Project Award	May 25, 2017
3.	Data Collection	June 30, 2017
4.	50% Design Submission	July 31, 2017
5.	95% Design Submission	September 30, 2017

The following items are optional and may be added to the Consultant Contract by the District through a Change of Scope Form:

6.	Final Review and Revisions	October 15, 2017
7.	Tender Ready Documents	October 31, 2017
8.	Issue Tender	January 28, 2018
9.	Tender Closing	February 21, 2018
10.	Award Contract	March 1, 2018
11.	Commence Construction	March 15, 2018
12.	Completion of Project	September 29, 2018



Schedule 'D' - Contract Fee

The upset Contract Fee for the various components of this consulting assignment shall be as follows:

	Total Upset Contract Fee	\$
	5	
•	95% Design Submission	\$
•	50% Design Submission	\$
•	Data Collection	\$

The following items are optional and may be added to the Consultant Contract by the District through a Change of Scope Form:

•	Final Design Submission (lump sum)	\$
•	Tendering process (lump sum)	\$
•	Record Drawings (lump sum)	\$
•	Construction Inspection (50hr/wk)	\$ per week
•	Project Management / Contract Administration (10hr/wk)	\$ per week



Schedule 'E' - Change of Scope Form Number

Project Title:	Giants Head Road Upgrades	Date: Enter Da	Date: Enter Date		
Consultant:	Enter Name of Consultant	Reference No:	5330-144		
FEE MODIFIC	CATION:				
	Current Approved Fee (excluding GST)	\$			
	Fee Modification (excluding GST)	\$			
	Adjusted Fee	\$			
	GST	\$			
	TOTAL ADJUSTED FEE	\$			
DESCRIPTIO	N OF CHANGE OF SCOPE: (attach addition	onal information if required)			
	fy that the above Change of Scope of the v	ork and the associated Fee Mo	dification has		
Kris Johnson,	P.Fng	Consultant			
	r.Eng. orks and Utilities	Consultant			
D.1. 30101 01 VVC	ino and Callago				



Schedule 'F' - RFP Evaluation Matrix

Project Title: Enter Name of Project Date: Enter date

Consultant: Enter Name of Consultant Ref #: XXXXXX

		Weighting Factor					
CATEGORY	Point Value	Unacceptable 0.0	Fair 0.25	Acceptable 0.5	Good 0.75	Excellent 1.0	Total Pts
Project Team Experience (35)							
Company	5						
Design Team	15						
Contract Administrator	5						
Site Inspector	10						
Methodology (35)							
Project Understanding	10						
Innovative Considerations	10						
Value Added Items	10						
Conformity to Terms of Reference	5						
Historical Performance (20)							
Budget Control	5						
Adherence to Project Schedule	5						
Contract Administration	5						
Site Inspection	5						
Project Fee (60)							
Data Collection Fee	10	-	-	-	-	-	
50% Design Submission Fee	10	-	-	-	-	-	
95% Design Submission Fee	10	-	-	-	-	-	
Final Design Submission Fee	5	-	-	-	-	-	
Tendering Process Fee	5	-	-	-	-	-	
Weekly Rates Contract Administration	5	-	-	-	-	-	
Weekly Rates for Site Inspector	10	-	-	-	-	-	
Record Drawing Preparation	5	-	-	-	-	-	
Total Points Available	150	Total Points This Proposal					

Notes: